

DECISION

Fair Work Act 2009 s.185—Enterprise agreement

Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd T/A Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd

(AG2022/2120)

GUNNEDAH LEATHER PROCESSORS PTY LTD (PRODUCTION) ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT 2022

Manufacturing and associated industries

COMMISSIONER LEE

MELBOURNE, 22 JULY 2022

Application for approval of the Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd (Production) Enterprise Agreement 2022

- [1] An application has been made for approval of an enterprise agreement known as the *Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd (Production) Enterprise Agreement 2022* (the Agreement). The application was made pursuant to s.185 of the *Fair Work Act 2009* (the Act). It has been made by Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd T/A Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd. The Agreement is a single enterprise agreement.
- [2] The Employer has provided written undertakings. A copy of the undertakings is attached in Annexure A. I am satisfied that the undertakings will not cause financial detriment to any employee covered by the Agreement and that the undertakings will not result in substantial changes to the Agreement. The undertakings are taken to be a term of the agreement.
- [3] Subject to the undertakings referred to above, I am satisfied that each of the requirements of ss.186, 187, 188 and 190 as are relevant to this application for approval have been met.
- [4] Pursuant to s.202(4) of the Act, the model flexibility term prescribed by the *Fair Work Regulations 2009* is taken to be a term of the Agreement.
- [5] The Australasian Meat Industry Employees Union being a bargaining representative for the Agreement, has given notice under s.183 of the Act that it wants the Agreement to cover it. In accordance with s.201(2) I note that the Agreement covers the organisation.
- [6] I observe that the following provisions are likely to be inconsistent with the National Employment Standards (NES):

- Clause 17.5.3 Abandonment of Employment.
- Clause 18.2.2 Notice of termination by an employee.
- Clause 35.2 Personal/Carer's Leave.
- Clause 37.1 Compassionate Leave.

However, noting clause 9 of the Agreement, I am satisfied the more beneficial entitlements of the NES will prevail where there is an inconsistency between the Agreement and the NES.

[7] The Agreement is approved and, in accordance with s.54 of the Act, will operate from 29 July 2022. The nominal expiry date of the Agreement is 29 July 2025.



COMMISSIONER

Printed by authority of the Commonwealth Government Printer

<AE516771 PR744102>

Annexure A

IN THE FAIR WORK COMMISSION

FWC Matter No.: AG2022/2120

Applicant:

Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd

Section 185 - Application for approval of a single enterprise agreement

Undertaking - Section 190

I, Welington Sardinha, General Manager for Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd give the following undertakings with respect to the Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd Enterprise Agreement (Production) 2022, ("the Agreement"):

- This Agreement will be read and interpreted in conjunction with the National Employment Standards (NES). Where there is inconsistency between this agreement and the NES, and the NES provides greater benefit, the NES provision will apply to the extent of the inconsistency.
- For the purpose of defining a shiftworker, the clause 34.2 on page 37 of the agreement will include "as provided for in section 87(1)(b) of the Act".
- Adult Wage Rates for grade 1 and grade 2 employees, in sub clause 22.1, on page 18 of the Agreement, will be amended to read as follows:

	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate
	(Average 38 Hours Week)	(Average 38 Hours Week)	(Average 38 Hours Week)
Grade	1st Year (14 June 2022 – 13 June 2023)	2 nd Year (14 June 2023 – 13 June 2024)	3 rd Year (14 June 2024 – 13 June 2025)
1	\$813.55 (5.3%)	\$837.95 (3.0% or FWC)	\$863.09 (3.0% or FWC)
2	\$836.13 (5.2%)	\$861.21 (3.0 % or FWC)	\$887.05 (3.0% or FWC)
3	\$904.94 (5.0%)	\$941.14 (4.0%)	\$978.79 (4.0%)
4	\$956.01 (5.0%)	\$994.26 (4.0%)	\$1034.03 (4.0%)

- Rates of pay will be amended in clause 23.3.2 on page 20 of the agreement, to change the minimum payment of supported wage employees from \$75 per week to \$95 per week
- In terms of the rates of pay for trainee drum operators, clause 20.12.5 on page 17 of the agreement, will be amended to read "the training drum operator will initially be paid at 90% of the drum operator rate (or their current rate whichever is higher)."
- With reference made to apprentices in relation to severance pay, clause 19.8.1, on page 16 of the Agreement, will be amended to remove the reference to apprentices.

1

- In terms of the casual minimum engagement, clause 17.3.1 of the agreement, will be amended to provide a casual minimum engagement of 4 ordinary hours (or 3 ordinary hours by employee request).
- 8. To include part-time safeguards, in the Agreement under clause 17.2, on page 11 of the Agreement, to include a new sub clause 17.2.5 to read; "before commencing part-time employment, the employee and employer must agree in writing on; the hours to be worked by the employee, the days on which they will be worked and the starting and finishing times for the work; and the classification applying to the work to be performed."
- 9. To clarify payment of part-time employees' overtime, clause 17.2, on page 11 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 17.2.6 to read; "A part-time employee who is required by the employer to work in excess of the hours agreed under sub clause 17.2.5 must be paid overtime in accordance with clause 30 of the Agreement".
- 10. In terms of part-time minimum engagement, clause 17.2.2 on page 11 of the Agreement will be amended and the part-time minimum engagement of 3 hours will be changed to a minimum engagement of 4 hours (or 3 hours by employee request).
- 11. In terms of the span of hours, clause 28.3.2, on page 24 of the Agreement, will be amended to provide "a span from 6am to 6pm, which may be moved up to one hour forward or back provided that the length of the span remains at 12 hours".
- 12. In terms of public holiday payments, the following amendments to clause 40.3.1, 40.3.2 and 40.3, on page 32 of the Agreement, will be made;
 - 40.3.1 Employees, including casuals, who work on a public holiday, shall be paid the rate of double time and a half
 - 40.3.2 Friday or Christmas Day, shall be paid the rate of triple time. This clause does not apply to Drum Hands.
 - 40.3.3 To be removed from the agreement
- 13. In terms of providing a minimum engagement for Saturday overtime, clause 32, on page 26 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 32.4 to read; "The minimum period of engagement for Saturday overtime shall be four ordinary hours".
- 14. In terms of overtime for continuous shift workers, clause 31.11, on page 26 of the Agreement, will be amended to provide an overtime penalty of 200% for continuous shift workers.
- In terms of other reductions contained in the Agreement, the following amendments will be made;
 - a. Clause 34.6.1, on page 24 of the Agreement, shall read "An employee will receive a loading of 17.5% calculated on the appropriate classification rate of pay. In the case of a shift worker the employee will be paid the greater of the shift allowance including relevant weekend penalty rates or the 17.5 % annual leave loading."
 - b. The following allowance, on page 22 of the Agreement, will be amended:
 - Clause 26.1 First Aid Allowance upon the commencement will be changed to \$18.72 per week. The 1st and 2nd Anniversary allowance amounts will remain unchanged.
 - ii. Clause 26.2 Meal Allowance will be changed to \$15.59.
 - Clause 26.4 Leading Hand Allowance upon the commencement will be changed to \$61.50. The 1st and 2nd Anniversary allowance amounts will remain unchanged.
 - Clause 26, on page 22 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 26.7 to read; "An employee who reaches agreement with their employer to use their own

- motor vehicle on the employer's business, must be paid \$0.91 per kilometre travelled."
- d. Clause 26, on page 22 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 26.8 to read; "Where an employee and their supervisor agree that work is of an unusually dirty or offensive nature, the employee must be paid 2.9% of the standard rate per hour extra."
- e. Clause 30 Additional Hours, on page 25 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 30.4 to read; "An employee recalled to work overtime after leaving the enterprise, whether notified before or after leaving the enterprise, must be paid:
 - for a minimum of 4 hours at 150% of the ordinary hourly rate for the first 3 hours and 200% of the ordinary hourly rate thereafter; or
 - ii. if the employee is a continuous shiftworker, at 200% of the ordinary hourly rate for the full period;

provided that:

- a) If the employee is recalled on more than one occasion between the termination of their ordinary hours on one day and the commencement of their ordinary hours on the next working day they are entitled to the 3 or 4 hour minimum overtime payment provided for in sub clause 30.4 of the Agreement for each call back. However, in such circumstances, it is only the time which is actually worked during the previous call or calls which is to be taken into account when determining the overtime rate for subsequent calls.
- b) Except in the case of unforeseen circumstances arising, an employee must not be required to work the full 3 or 4 hours as the case may be if the job they were recalled to perform is completed within a shorter period.
- c) Sub clause 30.4 of the Agreement does not apply in cases where it is customary for an employee to return to the enterprise to perform a specific job outside the employee's ordinary hours or where the overtime is continuous, subject to a meal break, with the commencement or completion of ordinary hours.

These undertakings are provided on the basis of issues raised by the Fair Work Commission in the application before the Fair Work Commission.

Welington Sardinha

19 July 2022

Signature

Name

Date

Authority to sign: General Manager

GUNNEDAH LEATHER PROCESSORS PTY LTD (PRODUCTION) ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT 2022

1. TITLE

This agreement shall be known as the Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd (Production) Enterprise Agreement 2022.

2. MISSION and OBJECTIVES

<u>Mission:</u> It is the Company's Mission to achieve and maintain globally competitive leather tanning and exports, by developing and maintaining strong relationships, reliable customer service, and safe, high quality high productivity operations.

<u>Objectives:</u> It is the Objective of this Production EA to generate outcomes that make a strong and effective contribution to the Company's Mission.

3. ARRANGEMENT

This Agreement is arranged as follows:

PART 1 - APPLICATION AND OPERATION OF AGREEMENT

Table of Contents

1.	TITLE	
2.	MISSION and OBJECTIVES	1
3.	ARRANGEMENT	1
4.	ANTI-DISCRIMINATION	2
5.	DEFINITIONS	3
6.	COMMENCEMENT DATE OF AGREEMENT AND PERIOD OF OPERATION	4
7.	PARTIES BOUND	4
PAF	RT 2 – AGREEMENT OBJECTIVES	4
8.	SINGLE BARGAINING UNIT	
9.	NATIONAL EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS	
10.	INDIVIDUAL FLEXIBILITY AGREEMENT	
11.	INTRODUCTION OF MAJOR CHANGE IN THE WORKPLACE	
12.	STAND-DOWN PROVISIONS	7
13.	PROCEDURES FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF INDUSTRIAL DISPUTES	7
14.	DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE	
15.	ABSENTEEISM MANAGEMENT PROGRAM	9
16.	DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY AND PROCEDURES	10
PAR	T 3 – EMPLOYER AND EMPLOYEE DUTIES, EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP AND RELATED ARRANGEMENT	S 11
17.	CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT	11
18.	NOTICE OF TERMINATION	12

Page 1 of 38

Note - the model flexibility term is taken to be a term of this agreement. This agreement is to be read together with an undertaking given by the employer. The undertaking is also taken to be a term of this agreement. A copy of these terms can be found at the end of the agreement.

19.	REDUNDANCY	13
PART	4 – DRUM OPERATOR PROVISIONS	16
20.	DRUM OPERATOR PROVISIONS	. 16
PART	5 – WAGES AND RELATED MATTERS	. 17
21.	CLASSIFICATIONS	. 17
22.	WAGE RATES	. 18
23.	SUPPORTED WAGE SYSTEM	. 19
24.	MIXED FUNCTIONS	. 21
25.	PAYMENT OF WAGES	. 22
26.	ALLOWANCES	. 22
27.	SUPERANNUATION	. 23
PART	6 - HOURS OF WORK, BREAKS, ADDITIONAL HOURS, SHIFT WORK, AND WEEKEND WORK	. 24
28.	HOURS OF WORK	. 24
29.	BREAKS	. 24
30.	ADDITIONAL HOURS	. 25
31.	SHIFT WORK	. 25
32.	SATURDAY WORK	. 26
33.	SUNDAY WORK	26
PART	7 – LEAVE OF ABSENCE AND PUBLIC HOLIDAYS	26
34.	ANNUAL LEAVE	26
35.	PERSONAL/CARER'S LEAVE	28
36.	LEAVE TO DEAL WITH FAMILY AND DOMESTIC VIOLENCE	29
37.	COMPASSIONATE LEAVE	31
38.	PARENTAL LEAVE	32
39.	LONG SERVICE LEAVE	32
40.	PUBLIC HOLIDAYS	32
SCHED	ULE A	35
SCHED	ULE B	35
SCHED	ULE C	36

4. ANTI-DISCRIMINATION

4.1. It is the intention of the respondents to this agreement to achieve the principal object in section 3(e) of the Fair Work Act 2009 enabling fairness and representation at work and the prevention of discrimination by recognising the right to freedom of association and the right to be represented, protecting against unfair treatment and discrimination, providing accessible and effective procedures to resolve grievances and disputes and providing effective compliance mechanisms.

- 4.2. Accordingly, in fulfilling their obligations under the disputes avoidance and settling clause, the respondents must make every endeavour to ensure that neither the agreement provisions nor their operation are directly or indirectly discriminatory in their effects.
- 4.3. Nothing in this clause is to be taken to affect:
 - 4.3.1. Any different treatment (or treatment having different effects) which is specifically exempted under the Commonwealth anti-discrimination legislation;
 - 4.3.2.An employee, employer or registered organisation, pursuing matters of discrimination in any State or Federal jurisdiction, including by application to the Human Rights and Equal Opportunity Commission.

5. DEFINITIONS

- 5.1. Annual Close Down means where the employer on one or more occasions during the year closes down the plant or a section or sections thereof for the purpose of allowing annual leave to all or the bulk of the employees in the plant or sections thereof.
- 5.2. Employer or Company means Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd.
- 5.3. Immediate Family (for the purposes of carer's leave and compassionate leave), includes
 - 5.3.1. spouse (including de facto spouse), child, parent, grandparent, grandchild, or sibling of the employee; and
 - 5.3.2. a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild or sibling of a spouse (including de facto spouse) of an employee.
- 5.4. FWC means Fair Work Commission.
- 5.5. Additional Hours rate shall mean the ordinary time rate of the appropriate classification rate, i.e. 1/38 of the classification rate increased by 50 percent to reflect time and a half and 100 percent to reflect double time as may be specified in the Agreement.
- 5.6. Casual employee means an employee who is engaged in relieving work or work of a casual, irregular or intermittent nature who is engaged (other than a regular employee) and paid by the day, but does not include an employee who could be properly classified as a permanent, full-time or part-time employee.

5.7. Calculation of Continuous Service

- 5.7.1. Continuity of service shall be deemed to be continuous not withstanding:
 - 5.7.1.1. Any interruption or determination of the employment by the employer if such interruption or determination has been made with the intention of avoiding obligations hereunder in respect of annual leave;
 - 5.7.1.2. Any absence on account of leave granted, imposed or agreed to by the employer; or
 - 5.7.1.3. Any absence due to reasonable cause;

Provided that, in cases of personal sickness or accident or absence with reasonable cause, the employee, to become entitled to the benefit of this clause shall, if practicable, notify the employer as soon as possible of such absence and their inability to attend for duty as far as practicable, the nature of the illness, injury or cause and the estimated duration of the absence.

- 5.7.1.4. Any absence of Workers Compensation.
- 5.7.2. In calculating a period of twelve months' continuous service;
 - 5.7.2.1. Any absence on paid leave; and
 - 5.7.2.2. In respect of any unpaid absences, the employee shall serve such additional period as part of the qualification for annual leave as will equal the period of such absences.
 - 5.7.2.3. Any absence from work by reason of any cause not being a cause specified in this clause shall not be deemed to break the continuity of service for the purposes of this clause unless the employer, during the absence or within fourteen days of the termination of the absence, notified the employee in writing that such absence will be regarded as breaking the continuity of service.
- 5.8. **Permanent employee** means an employee who could be properly classified as a full-time or part-time employee and specifically excludes an employee who could be properly classified as a casual employee.
- 5.9. **AMIEU** means the Australasian Meat Industry Employees Union Newcastle & Northern Branch

6. COMMENCEMENT DATE OF AGREEMENT AND PERIOD OF OPERATION

This agreement shall commence on the first Wednesday following the date of approval from the Fair Work Commission and will remain in force for a period of 3 years

7. PARTIES BOUND

The parties bound by this agreement are:

Australasian Meat Industry Employees Union Newcastle & Northern branch; Production employees of Gunnedah Leather Processors that fit within the classification structure as laid out within this Agreement; and Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd.

PART 2 - AGREEMENT OBJECTIVES

8. SINGLE BARGAINING UNIT

This Enterprise Agreement has been developed through the auspices of a single bargaining unit comprising representatives of the employees, management and the Australasian Meat Industry Employees Union Newcastle & Northern Branch.

9. NATIONAL EMPLOYMENT STANDARDS

This Agreement will be read and interpreted in conjunction with the National Employment Standards (NES). Where there is inconsistency between this agreement and the NES, and the NES provides greater benefit, the NES provision will apply to the extent of the inconsistency.

10. INDIVIDUAL FLEXIBILITY AGREEMENT

10.1. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the employer and an individual employee may agree to vary the application of certain terms of this Agreement to meet the genuine individual needs of the employer and the individual employee. The terms the employer and the individual employee may agree to vary the application of are those concerning:

- arrangements for when work is performed;
- additional hours rates;
- penalty rates;
- allowances; and
- leave loading.
- 10.2. The employer and the individual employee must have genuinely made the agreement without coercion or duress.
- 10.3. The agreement between the employer and the individual employee must:
 - 10.3.1. be confined to a variation in the application of one or more of the terms listed in clause 10.1; and
 - 10.3.2. result in the employee being better off overall than the employee would have been if no individual flexibility agreement had been agreed to.
- 10.4. The agreement between the employer and the individual employee must also:
 - 10.4.1. be in writing, name the parties to the agreement and be signed by the employer and the individual employee and, if the employee is under 18 years of age, the employee's parent or guardian;
 - 10.4.2. state each term of this Agreement that the employer and the individual employee have agreed to vary;
 - 10.4.3. detail how the application of each term has been varied by agreement between the employer and the individual employee;
 - 10.4.4. detail how the agreement results in the individual employee being better off overall in relation to the individual employee's terms and conditions of employment; and state the date the agreement commences to operate.
- 10.5. The employer must give the individual employee a copy of the agreement and keep the agreement as a time and wages record.
- 10.6. Except as provided in clause 10.4.1 the agreement must not require the approval or consent of a person other than the employer and the individual employee.
- 10.7. The employer seeking to enter into an agreement must provide a written proposal to the employee. Where the employee's understanding of written English is limited the employer must take measures, including translation into an appropriate language, to ensure the employee understands the proposal.
- 10.8. The agreement may be terminated:
 - 10.8.1. by the employer or the individual employee giving 13 weeks' notice of termination, in writing, to the other party and the agreement ceasing to operate at the end of the notice period; or
 - 10.8.2. at any time, by written agreement between the employer and the individual employee.
- 10.9. The right to make an agreement pursuant to this clause is in addition to, and is not intended to otherwise affect, any provision for an agreement between the employer and an individual employee contained in any other term of this Agreement.

11. INTRODUCTION OF MAJOR CHANGE IN THE WORKPLACE

11.1. Employer's duty to notify

- 11.1.1. Where the employer has made a definite decision to introduce major changes in production, program, organisation, structure or technology that are likely to have significant effects on employees, the employer shall notify the employees who may be affected by the proposed changes and the AMIEU.
- 11.1.2. Significant effects include termination of employment, major changes in the composition, operation or size of the employer's workforce or in the skills required; the elimination or diminution of job opportunities, promotion opportunities or job tenure; the alteration of hours of work; the need for retraining or transfer of employees to other work or locations and the restructuring of jobs. Provided that where the agreement makes provision for alteration of any of the matters referred to herein an alteration shall be deemed not to have significant effect.

11.2. Employer's duty to discuss change

- 11.2.1. The employer shall discuss with the employees affected and the AMIEU, the introduction of the proposed changes, the effects the changes are likely to have on employees, measures to avert or mitigate the adverse effects of such changes on employees and shall give prompt consideration to matters raised by the employees and/ or the AMIEU.
- 11.2.2. The discussions shall commence as early as practicable after a definite decision has been made by the employer to make the changes referred to in clause 10.1 hereof,
- 11.2.3. For the purposes of such discussion, the employer shall provide in writing to the employees concerned and the AMIEU if formally requested, all relevant information about the changes including the nature of the changes proposed; the expected effects of the changes on employees and any other matters likely to affect employees, provided that any employer shall not be required to disclose confidential information the disclosure of which would be adverse to the employer's interests.

11.3. Consultation about changes to roster or hours of work

11.3.1. Where an employer proposes to change an employee's regular roster or ordinary hours of work, the employer must consult with the employee or employees affected and their representatives, if any, about the proposed change.

11.3.2. The employer must:

- provide to the employee or employees affected and their representatives, if any, information about the proposed change (for example, information about the nature of the change to the employee's regular roster or ordinary hours of work and when that change is proposed to commence);
- invite the employee or employees affected and their representatives, if any, to give their views about the impact of the proposed change (including any impact in relation to their family or caring responsibilities); and
- give consideration to any views about the impact of the proposed change that are given by the employee or employees concerned and/or their representatives.
- The requirement to consult under this clause does not apply where an employee has irregular, sporadic or unpredictable working hours.

11.3.3. These provisions are to be read in conjunction with other award provisions concerning the scheduling of work and notice requirements."

12. STAND-DOWN PROVISIONS

- 12.1. Notwithstanding anything elsewhere contained in this clause, the employer shall have the right to deduct payment for any day, or part day, on which an employee cannot be usefully employed, because of lack of work caused by a strike, through any breakdown of machinery or any stoppage of work or by any cause for which the employer cannot reasonably be held responsible.
- 12.2. The application of this provision is subject to notice being given to employees on the day prior to the stand down, except for circumstances of machinery breakdown and other reasons where prior notice is not possible.
- 12.3. At the end of the stand down period employment will resume and employment will be deemed to have been continuous subject to adjustments to service entitlements.
- 12.4. The parties recognise the need for flexibility and the need to make special arrangements to suit work requirements.
- 12.5. Following equipment breakdown or other unforeseen circumstance that the employer is not responsible for, workgroups may be stood down immediately and may be asked to report to work later that day or on some other day. The employees requested to report later that day or on some other day will be paid their ordinary hours for the time actually worked. Upon recall to work, consecutive time actually worked in periods that would normally attract a shift penalty will be paid at such penalties for the time worked. Hours worked in excess of the standard day's hours may be paid at the applicable Additional Hours rates. The company further agrees that it will not unreasonably disadvantage any individual unable to attend work later who is dealing in good faith. The workforce will work with the company to reduce the effect of someone being unable to re-attend.

13. PROCEDURES FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF INDUSTRIAL DISPUTES

- 13.1. In the event of a dispute about a matter under this Agreement, a dispute in relation to the National Employment Standards or a dispute concerning any other employment related matter save for termination of employment, the procedures for resolving the dispute are as follows
 - 13.1.1. The employee/s concerned will first meet and confer with their immediate supervisor. The employee/s may appoint another person to act on their behalf including a shop steward or delegate of the AMIEU. Subject to 13.2and 13.3 where the AMIEU delegate is involved he/she shall be allowed the necessary time during working hours to interview the employee(s) and the supervisor.
 - 13.1.2. If the matter is not resolved at such a meeting the parties will arrange further discussions involving more senior management as appropriate. The employee may invite an AMIEU official to be involved in the discussions. The employer may also invite into the discussions an officer of the employer organisation to which the employer belongs. The AMIEU delegate shall be allowed at a place designated by the employer, a reasonable period of time during working hours to interview the AMIEU official.
 - 13.1.3. If the matter remains unresolved, the parties shall jointly or individually refer the matter to Fair Work Commission for assistance in resolving the matter by

conciliation and, if necessary arbitration in accordance with Section 739 of the Fair Work Act 2009

- 13.2. In order to facilitate the procedure in 13.1:
 - 13.2.1. The party with the grievance must notify the other party at the earliest opportunity of the problem;
 - 13.2.2. Throughout all stages of the procedure all relevant facts must be clearly identified and recorded:
 - 13.2.3. Sensible time limits must be allowed for completion of the various stages of discussion. However, the parties must co-operate to ensure that the disputes resolution procedures are carried out as quickly as possible.
- 13.3. While the parties are attempting to resolve the matter the parties will continue to work in accordance with this Agreement and their contract of employment unless the employee has a reasonable concern about an imminent risk to his/her or her health and safety. Subject to relevant provisions of any occupational health and safety law, even if the employee has a reasonable concern about an imminent risk to his/her or her health or safety, the employee must not unreasonably fail to comply with a direction by his/her or her employer to perform other available work, whether at the same enterprise or another enterprise, that is safe and appropriate for the employee to perform.
- 13.4. Dispute settlement training leave
 - 13.4.1. A single AMIEU delegate shall be entitled to, and the employer shall grant up to three days with pay per year, non-cumulative, to attend courses conducted by AMIEU on the following conditions:
 - the scope content and level of the courses are directed to the enhancement of the operation of the procedure for avoidance of industrial disputes;
 - · reasonable notice is given by AMIEU or the delegate;
 - the taking of leave is taken having regard to the operational requirements of the employer;
 - the delegate taking such leave shall be paid all ordinary time earnings which normally become due and payable during the period of leave;
 - leave of absence granted pursuant to this clause will count as service for all purposes of this award.

14. DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURE

14.1. The following procedure shall be followed where warnings/counselling are required:

STEP 1 The employee's Supervisor / Manager may issue the employee warning. At this stage the employee will receive counselling to make of the unsatisfactory performance and/or conduct, the Company's exaction required to correct the problem. This verbal warning will be doc	
STEP 2	Should the employee continue to present a poor performance or poor conduct the employee will receive a first written warning.
STEP 3	Should the employee continue to present a poor performance or poor conduct the employee will receive a 2 nd and final written warning,
STEP 4	If action is not taken to correct the unsatisfactory performance and or conduct this may result in the employee being suspended for one week (without pay) or terminated and given a letter of termination.

- 14.2. At all stages of the warning/disciplinary procedure the employee shall be provided with the opportunity to reply and be entitled to have a Union delegate or support/advocate present.
- 14.3. Each counselling/warning shall advise the duration it is to apply for up to a maximum of twelve (12) months from the date that it is issued. Counselling and warnings over 12 months old can still be used in building a history of the employees conduct and performance. In progressing from one level of counselling/warning to another the most recent counselling/warning may be used as the basis to escalate the level of warning/counselling to be issued on a new or continuing problem, breach, or behaviour.
- 14.4. Depending on the seriousness of the matter, some or all of the above warnings may be skipped and the disciplinary process escalated as determined appropriate by the company in the circumstances.

15. ABSENTEEISM MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

- 15.1. For the purposes of this clause, "absenteeism" is defined as any absence from work.
- 15.2. An employee may be placed on an Absenteeism Management Program for any two or more of the following reasons:
 - 15.2.1. unauthorised absences from work
 - 15.2.2. regular or consistent absence from work without satisfactory reason.
 - 15.2.3. any other absence without satisfactory reason.

For the purposes of this sub-clause, an "unauthorised absence" is defined as an absence which has not been approved prior to the absence or subsequently authorised according to the individual circumstance.

- 15.3. In considering whether an employee should be placed on an Absenteeism Management Program, the following will apply:
 - 15.3.1. The employee will be advised verbally that the employer is concerned about their level of absenteeism.
 - 15.3.2. The employee will be given notice that a meeting will be held to discuss the concerns and that the employee is entitled to invite a representative of their choice to attend the meeting.

- 15.3.3. at the meeting, the employer will explain the reason for concern and provide the employee with an opportunity to respond.
- 15.3.4. at the conclusion of the meeting, if the employer is not satisfied with the employee's response, the employer will advise the employee that he or she will be placed on an Absenteeism Management Program which will be confirmed in writing.
- 15.3.5. if the employee disagrees with the employer's decision, the employee will be entitled to pursue the matter in accordance with the Dispute Procedure
- 15.4. Employees placed on the Absenteeism Management Program will be subject to the following requirements for a period of 12 months from the date they are placed on the program, or the date of their most recent breach of the Absenteeism Management Program:
 - on each day the employee is absent from work for any reason other than authorised leave, the employee must (unless incapacitated) personally notify the Manager (or other company representative that the company may nominate from time to time, to the individual employee) of their inability to attend work as soon as they become aware of, and shall wherever possible notify the employer of their absence prior to their designated start time. The employee must advise why they are unable to attend and when they expect to return to work.
 - 15.4.2. If it reasonably practicable to do so, the employee will be required to provide the employer with a medical certificate from a duly registered medical practitioner, for all Personal / Carer's Leave absences including single day periods. This certificate should within reason specify the nature of the illness and the period (dates inclusive) which the employee will be unfit to work. If it is not reasonably practicable for the employee to give the employer a medical certificate, then a statutory declaration by the employee will be required.
- 15.5. Failure to satisfy any of the requirements specified in the Absenteeism Management Program will be a breach of the Absentee Management Program, and may result in the employee being counselled and issued a written warning for breaching the Absenteeism Management Program, and alerted that his or her continuing employment is at risk.
- 15.6. Counselling and or warnings undertaken in accordance with this Agreement for breaches of the Absenteeism Management Program may be issued through the Disciplinary Procedure, Clause 14.
- 15.7. Counselling and warnings, verbal or written, for other reasons or matters received prior to being placed on the absenteeism management program will count as counselling and warnings within the absenteeism management framework and level of warning within the Disciplinary Procedure, Clause 14.
- 15.8. The Absenteeism Management Program clause(s) overrides the Personal/ Carer's Leave clause(s) in cases where there is any inconsistency.

16. DRUG AND ALCOHOL POLICY AND PROCEDURES

16.1. The company and employees agree to work together in developing policies and procedures for the management of the site free from the effects of alcohol, drugs, and abused substances on our workforce. This may include processes such as, but not limited to, drug and alcohol testing through pre-employment, voluntary, random methods, on suspicion, and or following an incident or accident. In generating these Policies and Procedures the intention is that the framework is seeking to provide a means to better ensure everyone's Health and Safety at work free from the potentially increased risk of harm to employees from drug and alcohol abuse.

16.2. If the parties are unable to agree through consultation on appropriate policies and procedures, the employee or employees may pursue the matter in accordance with clause 14 of this agreement.

PART 3 – EMPLOYER AND EMPLOYEE DUTIES, EMPLOYMENT RELATIONSHIP AND RELATED ARRANGEMENTS

17. CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT

- 17.1. No employee shall be employed except in accordance with the following;
 - 17.1.1. Full Time
 - 17.1.2. A full time employee shall mean an employee who is engaged to work 38 ordinary hours per week averaged over a period up to twenty eight days.

17.2. Part Time

- 17.2.1. Except as provided in Parental Leave Provisions, a part time employee shall mean an employee who works regular weekly hours of less than 38 ordinary hours per week on average over a period up to twenty eight days.
- 17.2.2. The minimum engagement on any day shall not be less than three ordinary hours.
- 17.2.3. Provided that part time employees shall be paid per hour at 1/38 of the weekly rate for the relevant classification, for each ordinary hour worked.
- 17.2.4. Part time employees shall receive pro-rata payment for annual leave, personal / carer's leave, public holidays, superannuation and long service leave and for any other entitlements of full time employees, proportionate to the hours worked by those employees

17.3. Casual Employment

- 17.3.1. A casual employee is an employee who is engaged and paid as such and shall perform such work as the employer from time to time may require during the period of engagement. The minimum period of engagement shall be three ordinary hours.
- 17.3.2. An employee's ordinary pay rate for each hour employed, one-thirty-eighth of the weekly wage proscribed by this Agreement for the classification employed. The employee shall receive an all-purpose loading of 25 per cent for each ordinary hour employed. Such loading shall be in lieu of payment for annual leave, personal / carer's leave, public holidays and compassionate leave.

17.4. Probation

New employees will commence employment on a 3 month probation. Any physical absence during the probationary period, other than for public holidays, will extend the period of probation so that the person will have physically worked the equivalent of 3 months. The probation period may be extended by another 3 months if the employee's performance and/ or conduct is not deemed to be satisfactory.

17.5. Abandonment of Employment

- 17.5.1. The absence of an employee from work for a continuous period exceeding two working days without the consent of the employer and without notification to the employer shall be prime facie evidence that the employee has abandoned their employment. In such case the employer will send written advice to the employee's last known mailing address informing them that their conduct has led the employer to believe the employee has abandoned his or her employment
- 17.5.2. If within a period of 7 days from last attendance at work or the day of the last absence in respect of which notification has been given OR consent has been granted, an employee has not established to the satisfaction of the employer that the employee was absent for reasonable cause, such employee shall be deemed to have abandoned their employment. Provided that if the employer obtains evidence of actual abandonment of employment then the period of 7 days mentioned above will not be applied.
- 17.5.3. Termination of employment by abandonment in accordance with this clause shall operate as from the date of the last attendance at work or the last days absence in respect of which consent was granted, or the date of the last absence in respect of which notification was given to the employer, whichever is the later and in such cases wages shall be paid up to the last attendance at work.

18. NOTICE OF TERMINATION

18.1. Notice of termination by employer

18.1.1. In order to terminate the employment of an employee the employer must give to the employee the period of notice specified in the table below:

Period of continuous service	Period of notice
1 year or less	1 week
Over 1 year and up to the completion of 3 years	2 weeks
Over 3 years and up to the completion of 5 years	3 weeks
Over 5 years of completed service	4 weeks

- 18.1.2. In addition to the notice in clause 18.1.1, employees over 45 years of age at the time of the giving of the notice with not less than two years continuous service, are entitled to an additional week's notice.
- 18.1.3. Payment in lieu of the prescribed notice in Clauses 18.1.1 and 18.1.2 must be made if the appropriate notice period is not required to be worked. Provided that employment may be terminated by the employee working part of the required period of notice and by the employer making payment for the remainder of the period of notice.
- 18.1.4. The required amount of payment in lieu of notice must equal or exceed the total of all amounts that, if the employee's employment had continued until the end of the required period of notice, the employer would have become liable to pay to the

employee because of the employment continuing during that period. That total must be calculated on the basis of:

- the employee's ordinary hours of work (even if not standard hours); and
- the amounts ordinarily payable to the employee in respect of those hours, including (for example) allowances, loading and penalties; and
- any other amounts payable under the employee's contract of employment.

18.1.5. The period of notice in this clause does not apply:

- in the case of dismissal for serious misconduct;
- to employees engaged for a specific period of time or for a specific task or tasks
- to trainees whose employment under a traineeship agreement or an approved traineeship is for a specified period or is, for any other reason, limited to the duration of the agreement;
- to casual employees.

18.2. Notice of termination by an employee

- 18.2.1. The notice of termination required to be given by an employee is the same as that required of the employer, save and except that there is no requirement on the employee to give additional notice based on the age of the employee concerned.
- 18.2.2. If an employee fails to give the notice specified in Clause 18.1.1 the employer has the right to withhold monies due to the employee to a maximum amount equal to the amount the employee would have received under Clause 18.1.4 less any notice actually given.

18.3. Job search entitlement

Where the employer has given notice of termination to an employee, an employee shall be allowed up to one day's time off without loss of pay for the purpose of seeking other employment. The time off shall be taken at times that are convenient to the employee after consultation with the employer.

18.4. Transmission of business

Where a business is transmitted from one employer to another, the period of continuous service that the employee had with the transmitter or any prior transmitter is deemed to be service with the transmittee and taken into account when calculating notice of termination. However, an employee shall not be entitled to notice of termination or payment in lieu of notice for any period of continuous service in respect of which notice has already been given or paid for.

19. REDUNDANCY

19.1. Definitions

- 19.1.1. **Business** includes trade, process, business or occupation and includes part of any such business.
- 19.1.2. **Redundancy** occurs when the employer decides that the employer no longer wishes the job the employee has been doing to be done by anyone and this is not due to the ordinary and customary turnover of labour.

- 19.1.3. **Transmission** includes transfer, conveyance, assignment or succession whether by agreement or by operation of law and **transmitted** has a corresponding meaning.
- 19.1.4. **Week's pay** means the ordinary time rate of pay for the employee concerned. Provided that such rate shall exclude:
 - overtime;
 - penalty rates;
 - disability allowances;
 - shift allowances;
 - special rates;
 - fares and travelling time allowances;
 - bonuses; and
 - any other ancillary payments of a like nature.

19.2. Transfer to lower paid duties

Where an employee is transferred to lower paid duties by reason of redundancy the same period of notice must be given as the employee would have been entitled to if the employment had been terminated and the employer may at the employer's option, make payment in lieu thereof of an amount equal to the difference between the former ordinary rate of pay and the new ordinary time rate for the number of weeks of notice still owing.

19.3. Severance Pay

An employee, other than an employee of a small employer, whose employment is terminated by reason of redundancy, is entitled to the following amount of severance pay in respect of a period of continuous service:

Period of continuous service	Severance pay
Less than 1 year	Nil
1 year and less than 2 years	4 weeks' pay
2 years and less than 3 years	6 weeks' pay
3 years and less than 4 years	7 weeks' pay
4 years and less than 5 yeas	8 weeks' pay
5 years and less than 6 years	10 weeks' pay
6 years and less than 7 years	11 weeks' pay
7 years and less than 8 years	13 weeks' pay
8 years and less than 9 years	14 weeks' pay

Period of continuous service	Severance pay	
9 years and less than 10 years	16 weeks' pay	
10 years and over	12 weeks' pay	

19.4. Employee leaving during notice period

An employee given notice of termination in circumstances of redundancy may terminate his/her employment during the period of notice. In this circumstance the employee will be entitled to receive the benefits and payments they would have received under this clause had they remained with the employer until the expiry of the notice, but will not be entitled to payment in lieu of notice.

19.5. Alternative employment

The employer, in a particular redundancy case, may make application to the Commission to have the general severance pay prescription varied if the employer obtains acceptable alternative employment for an employee.

19.6. Job search entitlement

- 19.6.1. During the period of notice of termination given by the, an employee shall be allowed up to one day's time off without loss of pay during each week of notice for the purpose of seeking other employment.
- 19.6.2. If the employee has been allowed paid leave for more than one day during the notice period for the purpose of seeking other employment, the employee shall, at the request of the employer, be required to produce proof of attendance at an interview or he or she shall not receive payment for the time absent. For this purpose a statutory declaration will be sufficient.

19.7. Transfer of business

- 19.7.1. The provisions of the Termination and Redundancy Clauses are not applicable where a business is before or after the date of this Agreement, transmitted from the employer (in this subclause called the transmitter) to another employer (in this subclause called the transmittee), in any of the following circumstances:
 - 19.7.1.1. Where the employee accepts employment with the transmittee which recognises the period of continuous service which the employee had with the transmitter and any prior transmitter to be continuous service of the employee with the transmittee; or
 - 19.7.1.2. Where the employee rejects an offer of employment with the transmittee:
 - in which the terms and conditions are substantially similar and no less favourable, considered on an overall basis, than the terms and conditions applicable to the employee at the time of ceasing employment with the transmitter; and
 - which recognises the period of continuous service which the employee had with the transmitter and any prior transmitter to be continuous service of the employee with the transmittee.

19.8. Employees exempted

- 19.8.1. This clause does not apply to:
 - employees terminated as a consequence of serious misconduct;
 - probationary employees;
 - apprentices;
 - · trainees:
 - employees engaged for a specific period of time or for a specified task or tasks;
 or
 - casual employees.

PART 4 - DRUM OPERATOR PROVISIONS

20. DRUM OPERATOR PROVISIONS

- 20.1. This clause is only applicable to permanent employees appointed to the Drum Operator roster, which is attached to this Agreement as Schedule A.
- 20.2. Drum Operators shall work an average 42 hours per week (average 38 ordinary hours plus 4 additional hours) over a period up to one hundred and twelve (112) days.
- 20.3. Shifts shall be 12 hours and worked on the basis of 2 dayshifts followed by 2 night shifts followed by 4 days off or alternatively 4 day shifts followed by 4 days off followed by 4 night shifts followed by 4 days off, by agreement between the employer and the majority of employees concerned
- 20.4. Drum Operators will be paid a Gross annualised wage of \$76382.67 (5.0% increase) increasing to \$79437.98 (4.0% increase) on the 1st anniversary of the Agreement and to \$82615.5 (4% increase) on the 2nd anniversary of the Agreement. Wages will be paid on a weekly basis.
- Drum Operators are entitled to a period of 210 hours (5 weeks) annual leave for each period of 12 months continuous service.
- Drum operators will not receive leave loading as this has already been factored into their leave entitlement provision and wage rate.
- 20.7. All time worked outside rostered working hours on any day will be deemed to be additional hours and shall be paid for at the normal ordinary rate of pay calculated from the annualised wage. The Drum Operators are required to cover the rosters of absent Drum Operators. In the event that there is only one Drum Operator on site, he/she will be required to work on his/her own. Provided that the company will, subject to the circumstances in each case, make all efforts to attempt to fill the vacant position as soon as possible, including for part of a shift, via the use of overtime and/or additional permanent or casual staff, or by other agreed method.
- 20.8. Drum Operators will be paid their normal ordinary rate for hours worked on weekends and public holidays.
- 20.9. Drum operators called back to work to cover for unexpected absences of a rostered drum operator to be paid from the time he/she receives the call as long as he/she reports to work within the an hour of receiving the call.
- 20.10. Personal/Carer leave as per clause 35.

20.11. Where a Trainee Drum Operator is allocated to work with one Full Time Drum Operator in a permanent roster, the Full Time Drum Operator will receive a Drum Operator Trainer Allowance equal to 3% of their current wages for the duration of the training period.

20.12. Trainee Drum Operator

- 20.12.1. Trainee Drum Operators are to be appointed as the business need arise
- 20.12.2. Trainee Drum Operators will undergo a mentoring arrangement with Drum Operators and the Technical Manager, after being trained in the necessary Safe Work Procedures and Responsibilities and Competencies of the role. Continuous coaching and rapid feedback will be available and followed.
- 20.12.3. Formal review of the Trainee Drum Operator will occur 6 months from appointment
- 20.12.4. If the Trainee is not progressing and developing in the role, the Trainee will return to their previous Classification.
- 20.12.5. Trainee Drum Operators will initially be paid at 70% of the Drum Operator Rate (or their current rate, whichever is higher).
- 20.12.6. The Trainee Drum Operator pay rate will then be progressed to 100% of the Drum Operator pay rate in 3 equal increments, after achieving core skills competencies as set by the Plant Manager and the Technical Manager.
- 20.12.7. In general the Company will aim to have the Trainee Drum Operator at the full Drum Operator rate within 18 months from appointment as a Trainee Drum Operator, subject to achieving the required competency level.

PART 5 - WAGES AND RELATED MATTERS

21. CLASSIFICATIONS

- 21.1. The structure of the classification system is to encourage employees to become multi skilled in the areas and competencies needed by the business and to remunerate them accordingly.
- 21.2. The grading system will work in conjunction with Safe Work Procedures, which will be used to outline the required skill in each area. The Grading Progression Procedure is outlined in schedule C.

GRADE 1

All Entry Level Employees.

Entry level employees who are in the initial stages of training. He/she will meet the basic criteria of being able to work in a safe manner, demonstrating effort, having a satisfactory attendance record and showing great attitude in the workplace. On commencement the employee will undertake induction and Health and Safety Orientation He/she will work under direct supervision at all times.

Progress to the next level within 3 months after commencement of employment provided successful completion of training. Will be appointed to a permanent position after six months if the position exists and the employee's conduct and performance are proven to be satisfactory. Workers will be considered to have a good conduct and performance if they contribute to a harmonious workplace, understand their role within our organisation, help us to produce and maintain high quality products, follow management directions, help us to increase our efficiencies, aim for zero accidents and display integrity.

GRADE 2

Refer to "Grading Progression Procedure" as outlined in schedule C

GRADE 3

Refer to "Grading Progression Procedure" as outlined in schedule C

GRADE 4

Refer to "Grading Progression Procedure" as outlined in schedule C

Appointment to Grade 4 is determined at the discretion of the company after consultation with the employee and their representative. The discretionary statement for appointment to this grade is to ensure that grade 3 is the normal grade most employees will attain with training, commitment and time

21.3. Rotation and Maintaining of Skill Level

All employees may be required to rotate tasks throughout their area in order to maintain the skill level of their grading. Employees who do not maintain the skill level of their grading will be subject to a grading review.

22. WAGE RATES

22.1. Employees other than Drum Operators

22.1.1. The following Senior wage rates shall apply for the duration of this Agreement:

Grade	Current rates	Weekly Rate (Average 38 Hours Week)	Weekly Rate (Average 38 Hours Week)	Weekly Rate (Average 38 Hours Week)
	(As per 2018 EBA)	1st Year	2 nd Year	3 rd Year
42		12 Month Period (Commencing following FWC Approval date -	(Subsequent 12 month period)	(Subsequent 12 month period)
1	\$772.60	\$795.78 (3.% or FWC)	\$819.65 (3.% or FWC)	\$844.24 (3.% or FWC)
2	\$794.80	\$818.64 (3 %or FWC)	\$843.20 (3 %or FWC)	\$868.50 (3 %or FWC)
3	\$861.85	\$904.94 (5.0%)	\$941.14 (4.0%)	\$978.79 (4.0%)
4	\$910.49	\$956.01 (5.0%)	\$994.26 (4.0%)	\$1034.03 (4.0%)

22.2. Junior Rates

Juniors will be paid the following percentage of the relevant classification Senior wage rates above:

- 15/16/17 80%
- 18/19/20 100%
- After 2 years of continuous employment, irrespective of their age, Juniors will be paid 100% of the relevant classification Senior wage rates.

23. SUPPORTED WAGE SYSTEM

23.1. Workers eligible for a supported wage

This clause defines the conditions which will apply to employees who because of the effects of a disability are eligible for a supported wage under the terms of this Agreement. In the context of this clause, the following definitions will apply:

- 23.1.1. Supported wage system means the Commonwealth Government system to promote employment for people who cannot work at full award wages because of a disability, as documented in Supported Wage System: Guidelines and Assessment Process.
- 23.1.2. Accredited assessor means a person accredited by the management unit established by the Commonwealth under the supported wage system to perform assessments of an individual's productive capacity within the supported wage system.
- 23.1.3. **Disability support pension** means the Commonwealth pension scheme to provide income security for persons with a disability as provided under the *Social Security Act* 1991, as amended from time to time, or any successor to that scheme.
- 23.1.4. **Assessment instrument** means the form provided for under the supported wage system that records the assessment of the productive capacity of the person to be employed under the supported wage system.

23.2. Eligibility criteria

- 23.2.1. Employees covered by this clause will be those who are unable to perform the range of duties to the competence level required within the class of work for which the employee is engaged under this award, because of the effects of a disability on their productive capacity and who meet the impairment criteria for receipt of a disability support pension.
- 23.2.2. This clause does not apply to any existing employee who has a claim against the employer which is subject to the provisions of workers' compensation legislation or any provision of this award relating to the rehabilitation of employees who are injured in the course of their current employment.
- 23.2.3. This clause does not apply to employers in respect of their facility, programme, undertaking, service or the like which receives funding under the *Disability Services Act 1986* and fulfils the dual role of service provider and sheltered employer to people with disabilities who are in receipt of or are eligible for a disability support pension, except with respect to an organisation which has received recognition under s.10 or 12A of that Act, or if a part only has received recognition, that part.

23.3. Supported wage rates

23.3.1. Employees to whom this clause applies shall be paid the applicable percentage of the minimum rate of pay prescribed by this award for the class of work which the person is performing according to the following schedule:

Assessed capacity	% of prescribed award rate
10%	10
20%	20
30%	30
40%	40
50%	50
60%	60
70%	70
80%	80
90%	90

- 23.3.2. Provided that the minimum amount payable shall be not less than \$75 per week.
- 23.3.3. Where a person's assessed capacity is 10%, they shall receive a high degree of assistance and support.

23.4. Assessment of capacity

For the purpose of establishing the percentage of the award rate to be paid to an employee under this award, the productive capacity of the employee will be assessed in accordance with the supported wage system and documented in an assessment instrument by either:

- 23.4.1. The employer and a union party to the award, in consultation with the employee or, if desired by any of these;
- 23.4.2. The employer and an accredited Assessor from a panel agreed by the parties to the award and the employee

23.5. Lodgement of assessment instrument

23.5.1. All assessment instruments under the conditions of this clause, including the appropriate percentage of the award wage to be paid to the employee, shall be lodged

by the employer with the Department of Employment and Workplace Relations through Centrelink.

23.5.2. All assessment instruments shall be agreed and signed by the parties to the assessment, provided that where a union which is party to the award, is not a party to the assessment, it shall be referred by the Registrar to the union by certified mail and shall take effect unless an objection is notified to the Registrar within 10 working days.

23.6. Review of assessment

The assessment of the applicable percentage should be subject to annual review or earlier on the basis of a reasonable request for such a review. The process of review shall be in accordance with the procedures for assessing capacity under the supported wage system.

23.7. Other terms and conditions of employment

Where an assessment has been made, the applicable percentage shall apply to the wage rate only. Employees covered by the provisions of the clause will be entitled to the same terms and conditions of employment as all other workers covered by this award paid on a pro rata basis.

23.8. Workplace adjustment

The employer wishing to employ a person under the provisions of this clause shall take reasonable steps to make changes in the workplace to enhance the employee's capacity to do the job. Changes may involve re-design of job duties, working time arrangements and work organisation in consultation with other workers in the area.

23.9. Trial period

- 23.9.1. In order for an adequate assessment of the employee's capacity to be made, the employer may employ a person under the provisions of this clause for a trial period not exceeding twelve weeks, except in some cases additional work adjustment time (not exceeding four weeks) may be needed.
- 23.9.2. During that trial period the assessment of capacity shall be undertaken and the proposed wage rate for a continuing employment relationship shall be determined.
- 23.9.3. The minimum amount payable to the employee during the trial period shall be no less than \$75 per week.
- 23.9.4. Work trials should include induction or training as appropriate to the job being trialled.
- 23.9.5. Where the employer and employee wish to establish a continuing employment relationship following the completion of the trial period, a further contract of employment shall be entered into based on the outcome of the assessment for capacity.

24. MIXED FUNCTIONS

1. An employee engaged for two hours or more on any day or shift on duties carrying a higher rate than the ordinary classification shall be paid the higher rate for such day or shift, and if for less than two hours of the employee's total time worked on such day or shift, the employee shall be paid for two hours at the rate of the higher classification and the balance of the employee's working time at the rate ordinary classification.

25. PAYMENT OF WAGES

- 25.1. Wages are to be paid weekly by Electronic Funds Transfer into a Bank account or account at another Financial Institution nominated by the employee.
- 25.2. On each pay day each employee shall receive a statement showing the total amount of ordinary wages and overtime and all deductions there from, in respect of all such monies paid to him or her by deposit in a bank or other similar account that he or she has nominated.
- 25.3. The employer shall not keep more than three days' pay in hand after the day nominated as the conclusion of the pay week.

26. ALLOWANCES

In addition to the rates otherwise set out in this Agreement the following shall be paid:

26.1. A weekly First Aid allowance will be paid to those nominated specifically by the company as First Aid attendants

Commencement date of Agreement	1 st anniversary of Agreement	2 nd anniversary of Agreement
\$18.40	\$19.13	\$19.90

- 26.2. Any employee required to work more than 1½ additional hours immediately following their rostered ordinary hours finishing time, without being notified the day before that the employee will be so required to work, shall be paid a **Meal allowance** of \$14.25, unless the company provides a suitable meal.
- 26.3. Any employee who is required to operate a forklift for not less than 90% of their work performed, shall be paid a Forklift Allowance as per the table below for those periods where they attend work and fulfil such duties.

Commencement date of Agreement	1 st anniversary of Agreement	2 nd anniversary of Agreement
\$0.89 per hour	\$0.89 per hour	\$0.89 per hour

26.4. Leading hand allowances are as follows -

Commencement date of Agreement	1 st anniversary of Agreement	2 nd anniversary of Agreement
\$58.04	\$60.37	\$62.78

26.5. Deputies Leading Hand Allowance

An allowance equal to a 1/5th of the weekly Leading Hand Level 1 allowance, will be paid on each day that a worker performs the role of the deputy leading hand in his or her area of work.

26.6. This clause does not apply to Drum Operators.

27. SUPERANNUATION

- 27.1. The following sets out the conditions under which superannuation is to be implemented by the company.
- 27.2. For the purpose of this clause, all references to the fund shall mean Australian Super established and governed by a trust deed as may be amended from time to time and includes any superannuation scheme which may be made in succession thereto.
- 27.3. The company shall pay to the Trustees of the fund on behalf of each employee who is a member of such approved fund a contribution in accordance with the requirements of this agreement.
- 27.4. The company shall contribute to the fund in respect of each employee such contributions as required to comply with the Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992 and the Superannuation Guarantee Charge Act 1992 as amended from time to time
- 27.5. All contributions and employee advice details shall be forwarded monthly to the fund.
- 27.6. All contributions shall be clearly identified on the employee's pay slip

27.7. Salary Sacrifice

The Employer allows salary sacrificing for superannuation. Employees who wish to take up this option are advised to seek independent financial advice prior to finalising any such arrangements. The Employer will not give any such advice and will not take any responsibility for the financial decisions that employees take. Salary sacrificing for superannuation requires the agreement of both the employee and the Employer.

27.8. Cessation of contributions

As an employee's eligibility for contributions to the fund to be paid on his or her behalf will cease on the last day of employment with the respondent employer, the respondent employer shall not make any contributions to the fund in any period beyond that last day of employment.

PART 6 - HOURS OF WORK, BREAKS, ADDITIONAL HOURS, SHIFT WORK, AND WEEKEND WORK

28. HOURS OF WORK

- 28.1. Ordinary hours shall not exceed an average of 38 per week.
- 28.2. Subject to the provisions of this clause, ordinary hours may be worked on any day, Monday to Sunday.

28.3. Standard ordinary hours

- 28.3.1. The following ordinary hours of work shall apply
- 28.3.2. Monday to Sunday between 4.00 am. and 6.00 p.m. inclusive
- 28.3.3. Up to 38 ordinary hours, between Monday to Sunday inclusive, may be worked
- 28.3.4. Ordinary hours will be continuous except for meal breaks
- 28.3.5. A maximum of 12 ordinary hours per day may be worked Monday to Sunday inclusive.
- 28.3.6. The minimum daily ordinary hours for full time employees is 6.33, except in instances where employees are stood down in circumstances beyond the employers control and in accordance with clause 12 of this agreement, where the minimum is 3 hours.
- 28.3.7. Employees are required to clock in and clock out before starting a shift and when completing the end of a shift. Failure to clock in or out may result in disciplinary action being taken.
- 28.3.8. Employees are required to clock out before showering etc. wage payments are for actual work completed not using amenities. Employees found to be doing this will be considered to be in breach of company procedures and disciplinary procedures may be invoked.
- 28.3.9. Ordinary hours performed on Saturday or Sundays refer to Clause 32 and 33 respectively.

28.4. Commencement of Work

Employees must be at their workstation, dressed, and ready for work at their respective nominated start time.

29. BREAKS

- 29.1. Except in the case of emergency or to suit production requirements, the time for the meal interval shall not be altered except on 24 hours' notice to the employees concerned
- 29.2. No employee shall be called upon to work for more than five hours without a break.
- 29.3. Meal intervals where allowed shall not, except as otherwise prescribed, be counted as part of the daily or weekly hours worked.
- 29.4. Employees will be allowed a paid 20 minute meal break.
- 29.5. Employees will be allowed an unpaid 10 minute break for washing time.

- 29.6. Employees will be allowed a second unpaid 30 minute meal break.
- 29.7. Employees returning from breaks must be at their workstation, dressed, and ready to resume work at the nominated time. Break times are inclusive of time required by employees for washing, changing, or cleaning themselves.

30. ADDITIONAL HOURS

- 30.1. The employer may require an employee to work reasonable additional hours and such employee shall work additional hours in accordance with such requirement.
- 30.2. All time worked outside rostered ordinary working hours on any day is deemed to be additional hours and shall be paid for at time and one half for the first two hours and double time thereafter.
- 30.3. This clause does not apply to Drum Operators.

31. SHIFT WORK

- 31.1. Subject to this clause, the employer may determine that shifts may be worked, for any work covered by this agreement.
- 31.2. The employer may, with the agreement of the employee, transfer an employee from day work to shift work, or from shift work to day work; or alternatively the transfer can be made on reasonable grounds, including but not limited to suiting the needs of the business.
- 31.3. Subject to Clause 30.1, shifts may be worked on a one-shift, two-shift or three-shift system.
- 31.4. For the purposes of this clause:
 - Afternoon Shift means a shift whose ordinary hours finish after 6.00 pm and at or before midnight.
 - Night Shift means a shift whose ordinary hours finish after midnight and before 8.00 am

31.5. Shift allowances

- 31.5.1. An employee on afternoon shift shall be paid the appropriate rate for the classification in which the employee is employed under this agreement, plus 25% thereof.
- An employee on night shift shall be paid the appropriate rate for the classification in which the employee is employed under this agreement, plus 30% thereof.
- 31.6. A Afternoon and night shift—non-successive shifts

an employee who works on an afternoon or night shift which does not continue:

- for at least five successive afternoon or night shifts or six successive afternoon or night shifts in a six day workshop (where no more than eight ordinary hours are worked on each shift); or
- ii. for at least 38 ordinary hours (where more than eight ordinary hours are worked on each shift and the shift arrangement is in accordance with clause),

must be paid for each shift 50% extra for the first three hours and 100% extra for the remaining hours

- 31.7. A casual employee employed in shift work shall receive the appropriate shift allowance percentage. The shift loading will be based on the rate of pay inclusive of the casual loading.
- 31.8. The ordinary hours of work for a shift worker shall be unbroken except by prescribed unpaid meal intervals and relevant stand-down provisions.

31.9. Meal intervals - shift workers

A shift worker will be allowed a paid meal interval, of 20 minutes, in accordance with this Agreement

- 31.10. The starting and finishing times of the ordinary hours of work of shift workers shall be fixed by the employer and once fixed may only be altered by agreement between the employer and the majority of the employees concerned or in the absence of such agreement by the giving of not less than seven days' notice by the employer to each employee of such proposed change of times. By agreement between an individual employee and the employer, an individual employee's roster may be altered at any time.
- 31.11. Any additional hours worked by shift workers outside the ordinary hours of work prescribed by this agreement shall be paid the Agreement rate (i.e. exclusive of the shift penalties) at time and a half for the first two hours and double time thereafter except in each case where the time is worked by arrangement between the employees themselves or for the purpose of effecting the customary rotation of shifts, or as otherwise provided for in this Agreement.
- 31.12. This clause does not apply to Drum Operators.

32. SATURDAY WORK

- 32.1. All work performed on Saturdays as Overtime Hours shall be paid at the rate of time and half for the first two hours with double time thereafter.
- 32.2. All work performed on Saturdays as Ordinary Hours shall be paid at the rate of time and half for all the hours worked.
- 32.3. This clause does not apply to Drum Operators.

33. SUNDAY WORK

- 33.1. All work performed on Sundays shall be paid for at double time.
- 33.2. A minimum of four hours will be paid where work is performed on a Sunday.
- 33.3. This clause does not apply to Drum Operators.

PART 7 - LEAVE OF ABSENCE AND PUBLIC HOLIDAYS

34. ANNUAL LEAVE

34.1. Permanent Employees other than Drum Operators

Full-time employees, other than casuals, are entitled to a period of 159.6 hours leave for each period of 12 months continuous service. Included in this amount is 7.6 hours of annual leave which is in lieu of an additional public holiday formally known as the "Butchers Picnic Day". In the event of the proclamation of an additional public holiday, the above additional day of annual leave will be recognised as the equivalent of this additional public holiday.

A minimum of three weeks' notice is required for all annual leave requests. A response will be provided to the employee who has applied for annual leave no later than one week following the application being made. The Company reserves the right to decline annual leave requests based on operational requirements. In special circumstances the Company may approve annual leave requested with less than three weeks' notice.

34.2. Seven Day Shift workers

In addition to the leave prescribed in Clause 34.1, a seven day shift worker who is regularly rostered to work on Sundays and Public Holidays will be entitled to an additional 38 hours leave after each period of 12 months continuous service.

If during the year of employment the employee has served only a portion of it as a seven-day shift worker, the additional leave is 3.167 hours for each completed month of employment as a seven-day shift worker. Where the additional leave is or comprises a fraction of a day such fraction does not form part of the leave period and any such fraction must be discharged by payment only.

34.3. Public Holidays during leave

Where any public holiday falls within an employee's period of annual leave and is observed on a day which in the case of that employee would have been an ordinary working day, there shall be added to the period of annual leave time equivalent to the ordinary time which the employee would have worked if the day had not been a public holiday.

34.4. Single day periods of annual leave

An employee may elect, with the agreement of the employer, to take annual leave in single day periods not exceeding five days in any calendar year at a time or times agreed between them.

34.5. Leave allowed before due date

The employer may allow an employee to take annual leave either wholly or partly in advance before the leave becomes due. In such case, a further period of annual leave will not commence to accrue until after the expiration of the twelve months in respect of which the annual leave or part of it had been taken before it accrued.

34.6. Annual leave loading

- 34.6.1. An employee will receive a loading of 17.5% calculated on the appropriate classification rate of pay. In the case of a shift worker the employee will be paid the greater of the shift allowance or the 17.5% annual leave loading.
- 34.6.2. Leave loading shall not apply to proportionate leave on termination in the first twelve months of employment.
- 34.6.3. This clause does not apply to Drum Operators.

34.7. Payment of annual leave on termination of employment

Where leave has been taken in advance by an employee and the employment of the employee is then terminated, the employer will use the amount already paid to offset any sums which would otherwise be paid. If the moneys already paid to the employee are still in excess of whatever monies would be otherwise payable, the excess will be deducted from any remuneration payable to the employee upon termination.

34.8. Annual close-down

34.8.1. The employer may close down a plant or a section of plant for the purpose of allowing annual leave to all or the bulk of the employees in the plant or sections concerned on up to two occasions each year, which may be up to 28 days total aggregate duration exclusive of public holidays.

- Where the employer closes down a plant or a section for the purpose of allowing annual leave to all or the bulk of the employees in the plant or sections concerned, the employer should, where possible, give the employees concerned not less than three months' notice of its intention to stand down for the duration of the close-down all employees in the plant or sections concerned.
- 34.8.3. The next twelve monthly qualifying period for each employee affected by the closedown will commence from the day on which the plant or section concerned is reopened for work. Provided that all time during which an employee is stood off without pay for the purposes of this clause will be deemed to be time of service in the next twelve monthly qualifying period.

34.9. Excessive Accrued Annual Leave:

Employees with excessive accrued annual leave may be required by the company to take annual leave subject to:

- the employee having at least 8 weeks leave accrued
- the employer giving the employee at least 4 weeks' notice and
- the employer not requiring the employee to take more than a quarter of the accrued leave.

34.10. Cashing Out Annual Leave:

An employee may cash out annual leave under the following circumstances:

- Annual leave must not be cashed out if the cashing out would result in the employee's remaining accrued entitlement to annual leave being less than 4 weeks; and
- Each cashing out of a particular amount of annual leave must be:
 - .1. by a separate agreement in writing between the employer and the employee,
 - .2. at the employee's request, and will not be refused other than for genuine operational reasons.
- The employee must be paid at least the full amount that would have been payable to the employee had the employee taken the leave that the employee has forgone.

35. PERSONAL/CARER'S LEAVE

- 35.1. An employee, other than a casual employee, who is absent from work on account of personal illness or on account of injury by accident or is required to provide care or support to a member of their immediate family or member of the employee's household because of a personal illness, or injury or an unexpected emergency, shall be entitled to leave of absence without deduction of pay, subject to the following conditions and limitations:
 - 35.1.1. The employee shall not be entitled to paid leave of absence for any period in respect of which the employee is entitled to workers' compensation.
 - 35.1.2. The employee shall, where practicable, notify the employer as soon as possible on the first day of absence, of the inability to attend for duty, and as far as practicable, state the nature of the injury or illness and the estimated duration of the absence. The employee shall continue to advise of any continuation of absence from work.

- 35.1.3. Employees will be afforded <u>four</u> single separate days of personal leave in each 12 months period without the need to supply supporting documentation. The latter will not be applicable to Monday's and/or Fridays. For all subsequent personal leave in that year, where reasonably practicable to do so, the employee will be required to provide the employer with a medical certificate from a duly registered medical practitioner, for all Personal/Carer's Leave absences including single days period. This certificate should within reason specify the nature of the illness and the period (dates inclusive) which the employee will be unfit to work. If it is not reasonably practicable for the employee to give the employer a medical certificate, then a Certificate for Personal Leave from a chemist is will be required. This obligation also applies in relation to a period of carer's leave.
- 35.2. Full-time employees, other than casuals, are entitled to a period of 76 hours leave for each period of 12 months continuous service. This leave will accrue to the employee at the end of each completed 4 week period of continuous service with the employer.

35.3. Cashing out of personal/carer's leave

- (a) Where an employee has more than 15 days of accumulated untaken personal/carer's leave, the employee may elect in writing that an equivalent payment will be made to the employee and the employer will pay such an employee for any accumulated untaken personal/carer's leave, from the accrued leave for that year, exceeding 15 days, up to a maximum payment of 76 hours. The employee must be paid at least the full amount that would have been payable to the employee had the employee taken the leave that has been foregone.
 - In order to make an election to have an equivalent payment made an employee must have sufficient leave accrued to retain a minimum balance of 15 days' leave after the equivalent payment is made;
 - b. The period of leave that can be cashed out is the amount of leave accrued for the year minus any leave taken for that year
 - c. The period of personal/carer's leave for which the employee has been paid will not be added to the period of untaken personal/carer's leave accrued to the employee.
 - d. The employee may only make this request once in any 12 month period.
 - e. Each cashing out of a particular amount of paid personal/carer's leave must be by separate agreement in writing between the employer and the employee.
- (b) Payment of excess accrued sick leave will be made to an employee, in respect of accumulated entitlement upon:
 - a. Termination of employment after 5 years continuous service, and;
 - b. has an entitlement balance of at least 16 days as at the termination date and;
 - their employment has not been terminated for reasons of misconduct, malingering, inefficiency or neglect of duty.
- 35.4. An employee will also be entitled to up to 2 day's unpaid carer's leave for each occasion, subject to the notification and production of evidence requirements.

36. LEAVE TO DEAL WITH FAMILY AND DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

- 36.1. This clause applies to all employees, including casuals.
- 36.2. Definitions
 - 36.2.1. In this clause:

family and domestic violence means violent, threatening or other abusive behaviour by a family member of an employee that seeks to coerce or control the employee and that causes them harm or to be fearful.

family member means:

- a spouse, de facto partner, child, parent, grandparent, grandchild or sibling of the employee; or
- ii. a child, parent, grandparent, grandchild or sibling of a spouse or de facto partner of the employee; or
- iii. a person related to the employee according to Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander kinship rules.
- 36.2.2. A reference to a spouse or de facto partner in the definition of family member in clause 36.2.1 includes a former spouse or de facto partner.

36.3. Entitlement to unpaid leave

An employee is entitled to 5 days' unpaid leave to deal with family and domestic violence, as follows:

- the leave is available in full at the start of each 12 month period of the employee's employment; and
- ii. the leave does not accumulate from year to year; and
- iii. is available in full to part-time and casual employees.

Note:1. A period of leave to deal with family and domestic violence may be less than a day by agreement between the employee and the employer.

2. The employer and employee may agree that the employee may take more than 5 days' unpaid leave to deal with family and domestic violence.

36.4. Taking unpaid leave

An employee may take unpaid leave to deal with family and domestic violence if the employee:

- 1. is experiencing family and domestic violence; and
- needs to do something to deal with the impact of the family and domestic violence and it is impractical for the employee to do that thing outside their ordinary hours of work.

Note: The reasons for which an employee may take leave include making arrangements for their safety or the safety of a family member (including relocation), attending urgent court hearings, or accessing police services.

36.5. Service and continuity

The time an employee is on unpaid leave to deal with family and domestic violence does not count as service but does not break the employee's continuity of service.

36.6. Notice and evidence requirements

36.6.1. Notice

- An employee must give their employer notice of the taking of leave by the employee under clause 36. The notice:
- ii. must be given to the employer as soon as practicable (which may be a time after the leave has started);and
- iii. must advise the employer of the period, or expected period, of the leave.

36.7. Evidence

An employee who has given their employer notice of the taking of leave under clause 36 must, if required by the employer, give the employer evidence that would satisfy a reasonable person that the leave is taken for the purpose specified in clause 36.4.

Note: Depending on the circumstances such evidence may include a document issued by the police service, a court or a family violence support service, or a statutory declaration.

36.8. Confidentiality

- 36.8.1. Employers must take steps to ensure information concerning any notice an employee has given, or evidence an employee has provided under clause 36.6 is treated confidentially, as far as it is reasonably practicable to do so.
- 36.8.2. Nothing in clause 35 prevents an employer from disclosing information provided by an employee if the disclosure is required by an Australian law or is necessary to protect the life, health or safety of the employee or another person.

Note: Information concerning an employee's experience of family and domestic violence is sensitive and if mishandled can have adverse consequences for the employee. Employers should consult with such employees regarding the handling of this information.

36.9. Compliance

An employee is not entitled to take leave under clause 36 unless the employee complies with clause 36.

37. COMPASSIONATE LEAVE

- 37.1. An employee, other than a casual employee, shall be entitled to a period of 2 day's paid compassionate leave for each occasion when a member of the employee's immediate family or a member of the employee's household
 - 37.1.1. contracts or develops a personal illness that poses a serious threat to his or her life;
 - 37.1.2. sustains a personal injury that poses a serious threat to his or her life; or
 - 37.1.3. dies.
- 37.2. The employee is required to supply to their employer any evidence that the employer reasonably requires of the illness, injury or death.
- 37.3. This clause shall have no operation while the period of entitlement to leave under it coincides with any other period of entitlement to leave.

38. PARENTAL LEAVE

An employee, other than a casual, engaged under this Agreement shall be entitled to parental leave or adoption leave in accordance with Sub-Division B of Division 5 of Part 2.2 of Chapter 2 of the Fair Work Act 2009 or any successor legislation.

39. LONG SERVICE LEAVE

Refer to NSW Long Service Leave Act 1955 or any successor legislation.

40. PUBLIC HOLIDAYS

- Permanent employees shall be entitled to the following holidays without loss of pay for ordinary rostered hours.
- 40.2. Public holidays shall be observed as follows

New Year's Day.
Australia Day
Good Friday
Easter Saturday
Easter Monday
Anzac Day
Sovereign's Birthday
Labour Day
Christmas Day
Boxing Day

Where an additional public holiday is gazetted by Government authority in a particular locality or for the State, it shall be observed as a public holiday for the purposes of this agreement.

40.3. Payment for work on public holidays

- 40.3.1. Employees, including casuals, who work on a public holiday, shall be paid the rate of time and a half.
- 40.3.2. Employees, including casuals, who work on Good Friday or Christmas Day, shall be paid the rate of double time. This clause does not apply to Drum Hands.
- 40.3.3. For permanent employees, the above payments shall be in addition to the ordinary rate of pay the employee would have received had the employee not so worked.
- 40.3.4. The minimum engagement on a public holiday shall not be less than 4 hours.
- 40.3.5. Notwithstanding any other provision of this clause, when an employee agrees to work on a public holiday which is part of his or her ordinary working week, the employee shall be paid at the rate prescribed by this clause for the particular holiday.
- 40.3.6. If any employee other than a casual employee is dismissed within fourteen days before any of the holidays and is re-engaged within fourteen days after any of the holidays, the employee shall be deemed to have been dismissed for the purpose of evading payment for such holiday and any payment so evaded shall be due and payable to the employee.
- 40.3.7. An employee who is required to work on 1st January, 26th January, Good Friday, Easter Monday, 25th April, 25th December or 26th December or any other day declared by or under a law of a State to be observed generally within the State as a public

holiday, may refuse to work such day or days providing they have reasonable grounds for such refusal. Refer to section 114 of the Fair Work Act 2009 or any successor legislation.

Signatories

On behalf of Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd

Mardin by Signature	Welington Sardinha Name	14/07/2022 Date
Authority to sign Geneval		
337 Iwia Road Address	Gunnedah, NSW, 2380	
Witness Signature	BANENDINA PERUCUA WELSKA Witness Name	14/1/22 Date
On behalf of Australasian Meat	Industry Employees Union Newcastle 8	& Northern Branch:
Secretary Signature	Justin Smith Secretary Name	18-7-22 Date
Authority to sign Brand	ch Secretary	AMIEU
34 Union Stre	et Newight Ve	1 2302
Witness Signature	Sason Rose Witness Name	18-7-22. Date

SCHEDULE A

DRUM OPERATORS PARAMETERS OF ROSTER

Drum Operators will be rostered to work on the following 8 day work cycle averaging 42 hours per week:

Day 1 - Day Shift - 12 hours

Day 2 - Day Shift - 12 hours

Day 3 - Night Shift - 12 hours

Day 4 - Night Shift - 12 hours

Day 5 - No Shift

Day 6 - No Shift

Day 7 - No Shift

Day 8 - No Shift

or alternatively 4 day shifts followed by 4 days off followed by 4 night shifts followed by 4 days off

Day 1 - Day Shift - 12 hours	Day 9 - Night Shift - 12 hours
Day 2 - Day Shift - 12 hours	Day 10 - Night Shift - 12 hours
Day 3 - Day Shift - 12 hours	Day 11 - Night Shift - 12 hours
Day 4 - Day Shift - 12 hours	Day 12 - Night Shift - 12 hours
Day 5 - No Shift	Day 13 - No Shift
Day 6 - No Shift	Day 14 - No Shift
Day 7 - No Shift	Day 15 - No Shift
Day 8 - No Shift	Day 16 - No Shift

SCHEDULE B

CODE of CONDUCT

The parties to this EA commit themselves to:

- Continuous improvement in standards in WHS, Quality and Efficiency, actively contributing to a safe and healthy workplace
- All Workers observing the Company's WHS Policies and Procedures, and providing input to help eliminate workplace incidents and accidents
- All Workers participating in the development, operation and improvement of quality outcomes that generate finished products that meet Customer requirements
- All Workers actively participating in the Company's HUMMING initiative, namely:
- · Harmonious Workplace
- Understanding Roles and Responsibilities
- Management Direction
- Meeting Quality Standards
- Improving Efficiency
- No Incidents
- Great Leadership

SCHEDULE C

Gunnedah Leather Processors Grade Progression Procedure

- A Safe Work Procedure (SWP) is developed for each task that needs to be performed in the
 respective areas. Employees are required to successfully complete the theoretical and practical
 component in order to be declared competent on that specific SWP / task (the practical
 assessment includes reaching set KPI's). The training approach and assessment criteria is
 determined by the company.
- 2. Employees' records are maintained on the training matrix. The training matrix may be viewed by employees who want to view their training gaps in order to progress.
- 3. Progression to the next level requires maintaining and performing previous grade's tasks as well.
- 4. Based on operational requirements employees are also required to perform other tasks outside their allocated area, but these tasks do not affect the employee's opportunity to progress in their allocated area. They will receive training in order to ensure that they execute these additional tasks safely.
- 5. The update of and changes made to SWP's, identifying required training for employees and tasks to be executed for each grade and area will remain an inherent management prerogative and will be based on operational requirements.
- 6. In order to progress, other requirements include; up to date WHS Induction, good attendance record, no valid warnings, good effort and enthusiasm for the role and at least 3 months experience in the current grade.
- 7. Grade 4 positions are vacancy based and are utilised for Leading Hand appointments.

	SWP: 11/1.1 - Flesher Hooking Up Operation			
	SWP: 11/1.2 - Flesher Area - Trimming Operation of Open Hides			
	SWP: 11/1.4 - Flesher Stamping Operation			
	SWP: 11/1.5 - Flesher area - Trimming After Fleshing Operation			
	SWP: 11/1.7 - Opening Up Of Hides At The Flesher area	64-3		
	SWP: 11/1.9 - Flesher Area Cleaning Operation	Grade 2		
	SWP: 11/13.1 - Flesher Area - Waste Pac-Baler Operations		Grade 3	
×	SWP: 11/10 - Knife Handling			
Flesher Area Specific SWP	SWP: 11/10.1 - Knife Sharpening Operation			
	SWP: 11/10.2 - Air Knife Operation			Grade 4 (Vacancy based & utilised for
	SWP: 11/1.3 - Flesher Operation			
	SWP: 11/1.8 - Flesher Start Up Procedure and Cylinder Sharpening			
er/	SWP: 11/49 - Salting & Curing of Hides			Leading Hand
esh	SWP: 11/1.6 - Flesher area – Forklift operation			appointments)
正	SWP: 11/15.15 - Forklift Loading and Unloading of Drums			appointments,
	SWP: 11/15.22 - Refilling of Forklift Gas Cylinder by Dispenser Pump - LPG			
	SWP: 11/15.28 - Dispatch of Hides			
	SWP: 11/15.31 - Short Term Preservation of Fresh Hides - Mixers			
	SWP: 11/15.32 - Chemical Delivery			
	SWP: 11/15.36 - Changing an empty IBC using a Forklift			
	SWP: 11/15.38 - Forklift Rotator and Grabber Operations			
	SWP: 11/15.54 - General Forklift Operations, Greasing and Cleaning			
	SWP: 11/15.69 - Loading and Unloading Heavy Vehicles			

	SWP:11/3.2 - Lime Shed Hooking Up Operation			
	SWP:11/3.3 - Lime Flesher Operation			
	SWP:11/3.4 - Lime Shed Pulling Out and Trimming Operations			
	SWP:11/3.7 - Lime Flesher Start Up and Cylinder Sharpening	Grade 2		
	SWP:11/3.8 - Lime Shed Gauging Hide Grains			
	SWP:11/3.9 - Lime Shed German and Biomedical Hides			
SWP	SWP: 11/4.1 - Pickle viewer operation			
lic	SWP: 11/4.2 - Packing wet blue pickle and pickle hides	Grade	Grade 3	
Lime & Pickle Area Specific	SWP: 11/10 - Knife Handling			Grade 4
	SWP: 11/10.1 - Knife Sharpening Operation			(Vacancy based & utilised for Leading Hand
	SWP: 11/10.2 - Air Knife Operation			
	SWP:11/3.5 - LS Splitting operation			
	SWP:11/3.6 - Lime Splitter Start Up			appointments)
	SWP:11/3.11 - Lime Flesher Cleaning Process			
	SWP:11/3.1 - Forklift - Transferring hides in Chariots from Drums to Lime Shed			
	SWP:11/3.10 - Lime Shed Collagen and Grain - Forklift Operations			
	SWP: 11/15.15 - Forklift Loading and Unloading of Drums			
	SWP: 11/15.22 - Refilling of Forklift Gas Cylinder by Dispenser Pump - LPG			
	SWP: 11/15.38 - Forklift Rotator and Grabber Operations			
	SWP: 11/15.54 - General Forklift Operations, Greasing and Cleaning	, ,		
建筑	SWP: 11/15.67 - Collagen - Forklift Operations (Devro load out)			

	SWP: 11/5.2 - Sammyer Hooking Up SWP: 11/5.3 - Sammyer Operation SWP: 11/5.5 - Sammyer Packing	Grade 2		
	SWP: 11/5.1 - Sammyer Felt Cleaning and Chrome Pit Operation	BALIFICATE VID CHRONING		
	SWP: 11/5.4 - Sammyer Audits Wet blue and Pickle Hides		Grade 3	
N N	SWP: 11/5.6 - Sammyer dispatch			Grade 4 (Vacancy
lS 8	SWP: 11/10 - Knife Handling			
, in	SWP: 11/10.1 - Knife Sharpening Operation			
E E	SWP: 11/15.15 - Forklift Loading and Unloading of Drums			
WB Sammying SWP	SWP: 11/15.21 - Refilling of Gas Cylinder by Decanting - LPG			Leading Hand
	SWP: 11/15.22 - Refilling of Forklift Gas Cylinder by Dispenser Pump - LPG			appointments)
	SWP: 11/15.36 - Changing an empty IBC using a Forklift			
	SWP: 11/15.38 - Forklift Rotator and Grabber Operations			
	SWP: 11/15.45 - Supagas Heat Shrink Gun			
	SWP: 11/15.48 - Use of Forklift attachment Pallet Compactor / Squasher			
	SWP: 11/15.54 - General Forklift Operations, Greasing and Cleaning			
C	SWP: 11/11.1 - Delivery and handling of sulphuric Acid			
SWI S	SWP: 11/11.2 - On return from Blackout (Effluent)			
fic 9	SWP: 11/11.3 - Effluent operation and odour management			
eci	SWP: 11/11.4 - Terminal pond inflow and storm water discharge			
ĕ				
а Ѕрес		Grade 2	Grade 3	
Area Spec	SWP: 11/11.5 - Polishing press operations (Location at CRP)	Grade 2	Grade 3	
ent Area Spec	SWP: 11/11.5 - Polishing press operations (Location at CRP) SWP: 11/11.6 - Effluent Irrigation Wet weather operation	Grade 2	Grade 3	
Effluent Area Specific SWP	SWP: 11/11.5 - Polishing press operations (Location at CRP)	Grade 2	Grade 3	

200 AND TO	SWP: 11/11.10 - Filtration Press Operation (Location at CRP)	
	SWP: 11/11.11 - Effluent / CRP - Gerni Pressure Washer Operations	
	SWP: 11/11.12 - EQ Main pit isolation points check before cleaning	
	SWP: 11/11.13 - Effluent Irrigation Pigging	
370	SWP: 11/11.14 - Brush Cutter / Line Trimmer - Petrol Operated	
	SWP: 11/22.2 - Proper use of duress / twig unit (Effluent)	
	SWP: 11/47 - Wallaby Fabrication spreader	
	SWP: 11/71 - General tractor operations with slasher attachment	
	SWP: 11/13.6 - Reset Circuit Breaker	
	SWP: 11/15.22 - Refilling of Forklift Gas Cylinder by Dispenser Pump - LPG	
	SWP: 11/15.38 - Forklift Rotator and Grabber Operations	
	SWP: 11/15.54 - General Forklift Operations, Greasing and Cleaning	

Schedule 2.2—Model flexibility term

(regulation 2.08)

Model flexibility term

- (1) An employer and employee covered by this enterprise agreement may agree to make an individual flexibility arrangement to vary the effect of terms of the agreement if:
 - (a) the agreement deals with 1 or more of the following matters:
 - (i) arrangements about when work is performed;
 - (ii) overtime rates;
 - (iii) penalty rates;
 - (iv) allowances;
 - (v) leave loading; and
 - (b) the arrangement meets the genuine needs of the employer and employee in relation to 1 or more of the matters mentioned in paragraph (a); and
 - (c) the arrangement is genuinely agreed to by the employer and employee.
- (2) The employer must ensure that the terms of the individual flexibility arrangement:
 - (a) are about permitted matters under section 172 of the *Fair Work Act 2009*; and
 - (b) are not unlawful terms under section 194 of the *Fair Work Act 2009*; and
 - (c) result in the employee being better off overall than the employee would be if no arrangement was made.
- (3) The employer must ensure that the individual flexibility arrangement:
 - (a) is in writing; and
 - (b) includes the name of the employer and employee; and
 - (c) is signed by the employer and employee and if the employee is under 18 years of age, signed by a parent or guardian of the employee; and
 - (d) includes details of:

Fair Work Regulations 2009

113

- (i) the terms of the enterprise agreement that will be varied by the arrangement; and
- (ii) how the arrangement will vary the effect of the terms;
- (iii) how the employee will be better off overall in relation to the terms and conditions of his or her employment as a result of the arrangement; and
- (e) states the day on which the arrangement commences.
- (4) The employer must give the employee a copy of the individual flexibility arrangement within 14 days after it is agreed to.
- (5) The employer or employee may terminate the individual flexibility arrangement:
 - (a) by giving no more than 28 days written notice to the other party to the arrangement; or
 - (b) if the employer and employee agree in writing—at any time.

114

IN THE FAIR WORK COMMISSION

FWC Matter No.: **AG2022/2120**

Applicant:

Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd

Section 185 – Application for approval of a single enterprise agreement

Undertaking - Section 190

- I, Welington Sardinha, General Manager for Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd give the following undertakings with respect to the Gunnedah Leather Processors Pty Ltd Enterprise Agreement (Production) 2022, ("the Agreement"):
- This Agreement will be read and interpreted in conjunction with the National Employment Standards (NES). Where there is inconsistency between this agreement and the NES, and the NES provides greater benefit, the NES provision will apply to the extent of the inconsistency.
- 2. For the purpose of defining a shiftworker, the clause 34.2 on page 37 of the agreement will include "as provided for in section 87(1)(b) of the Act".
- 3. Adult Wage Rates for grade 1 and grade 2 employees, in sub clause 22.1, on page 18 of the Agreement, will be amended to read as follows:

	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	Weekly Rate	
	(Average 38 Hours Week)	(Average 38 Hours Week)	(Average 38 Hours Week)	
Grade	1st Year (14 June 2022 – 13 June 2023)	2nd Year (14 June 2023 – 13 June 2024)	3 rd Year (14 June 2024 – 13 June 2025)	
1	\$813.55 (5.3%)	\$837.95 (3.0% or FWC)	\$863.09 (3.0% or FWC)	
2	\$836.13 (5.2%)	\$861.21 (3.0 % or FWC)	\$887.05 (3.0% or FWC)	
3	\$904.94 (5.0%)	\$941.14 (4.0%)	\$978.79 (4.0%)	
4	\$956.01 (5.0%)	\$994.26 (4.0%)	\$1034.03 (4.0%)	

- 4. Rates of pay will be amended in clause 23.3.2 on page 20 of the agreement, to change the minimum payment of supported wage employees from \$75 per week to \$95 per week.
- 5. In terms of the rates of pay for trainee drum operators, clause 20.12.5 on page 17 of the agreement, will be amended to read "the training drum operator will initially be paid at 90% of the drum operator rate (or their current rate whichever is higher)."
- 6. With reference made to apprentices in relation to severance pay, clause 19.8.1, on page 16 of the Agreement, will be amended to remove the reference to apprentices.

- 7. In terms of the casual minimum engagement, clause 17.3.1 of the agreement, will be amended to provide a casual minimum engagement of 4 ordinary hours (or 3 ordinary hours by employee request).
- 8. To include part-time safeguards, in the Agreement under clause 17.2, on page 11 of the Agreement, to include a new sub clause 17.2.5 to read; "before commencing part-time employment, the employee and employer must agree in writing on; the hours to be worked by the employee, the days on which they will be worked and the starting and finishing times for the work; and the classification applying to the work to be performed."
- 9. To clarify payment of part-time employees' overtime, clause 17.2, on page 11 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 17.2.6 to read; "A part-time employee who is required by the employer to work in excess of the hours agreed under sub clause 17.2.5 must be paid overtime in accordance with clause 30 of the Agreement".
- 10. In terms of part-time minimum engagement, clause 17.2.2 on page 11 of the Agreement will be amended and the part-time minimum engagement of 3 hours will be changed to a minimum engagement of 4 hours (or 3 hours by employee request).
- 11. In terms of the span of hours, clause 28.3.2, on page 24 of the Agreement, will be amended to provide "a span from 6am to 6pm, which may be moved up to one hour forward or back provided that the length of the span remains at 12 hours".
- 12. In terms of public holiday payments, the following amendments to clause 40.3.1, 40.3.2 and 40.3, on page 32 of the Agreement, will be made;
 - 40.3.1 Employees, including casuals, who work on a public holiday, shall be paid the rate of double time and a half
 - 40.3.2 Friday or Christmas Day, shall be paid the rate of triple time. This clause does not apply to Drum Hands.
 - 40.3.3 To be removed from the agreement
- 13. In terms of providing a minimum engagement for Saturday overtime, clause 32, on page 26 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 32.4 to read; "The minimum period of engagement for Saturday overtime shall be four ordinary hours".
- 14. In terms of overtime for continuous shift workers, clause 31.11, on page 26 of the Agreement, will be amended to provide an overtime penalty of 200% for continuous shift workers.
- 15. In terms of other reductions contained in the Agreement, the following amendments will be made:
 - a. Clause 34.6.1, on page 24 of the Agreement, shall read "An employee will receive a loading of 17.5% calculated on the appropriate classification rate of pay. In the case of a shift worker the employee will be paid the greater of the shift allowance including relevant weekend penalty rates or the 17.5 % annual leave loading."
 - b. The following allowance, on page 22 of the Agreement, will be amended:
 - Clause 26.1 First Aid Allowance upon the commencement will be changed to \$18.72 per week. The 1st and 2nd Anniversary allowance amounts will remain unchanged.
 - ii. Clause 26.2 Meal Allowance will be changed to \$15.59.
 - iii. Clause 26.4 Leading Hand Allowance upon the commencement will be changed to \$61.50. The 1st and 2nd Anniversary allowance amounts will remain unchanged.
 - c. Clause 26, on page 22 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 26.7 to read; "An employee who reaches agreement with their employer to use their own

- motor vehicle on the employer's business, must be paid \$0.91 per kilometre travelled."
- d. Clause 26, on page 22 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 26.8 to read; "Where an employee and their supervisor agree that work is of an unusually dirty or offensive nature, the employee must be paid 2.9% of the standard rate per hour extra."
- e. Clause 30 Additional Hours, on page 25 of the Agreement, will include a new sub clause 30.4 to read; "An employee recalled to work overtime after leaving the enterprise, whether notified before or after leaving the enterprise, must be paid:
 - i. for a minimum of 4 hours at **150**% of the ordinary hourly rate for the first 3 hours and **200**% of the ordinary hourly rate thereafter; or
 - ii. if the employee is a continuous shiftworker, at **200%** of the ordinary hourly rate for the full period;

provided that:

- a) If the employee is recalled on more than one occasion between the termination of their ordinary hours on one day and the commencement of their ordinary hours on the next working day they are entitled to the 3 or 4 hour minimum overtime payment provided for in sub clause 30.4 of the Agreement for each call back. However, in such circumstances, it is only the time which is actually worked during the previous call or calls which is to be taken into account when determining the overtime rate for subsequent calls.
- b) Except in the case of unforeseen circumstances arising, an employee must not be required to work the full 3 or 4 hours as the case may be if the job they were recalled to perform is completed within a shorter period.
- c) Sub clause 30.4 of the Agreement does not apply in cases where it is customary for an employee to return to the enterprise to perform a specific job outside the employee's ordinary hours or where the overtime is continuous, subject to a meal break, with the commencement or completion of ordinary hours.

These undertakings are provided on the basis of issues raised by the Fair Work Commission in the application before the Fair Work Commission.

Welington Sardinha 19 July 2022
Signature Name Date

Authority to sign: General Manager